

MINUTES NEW YORK STATE RACING AND WAGERING BOARD MEETING OF MAY 25, 2010

A meeting of the New York State Racing and Wagering Board was held on Monday, May 25, 2010 at 10:30 a.m. at the Racing & Wagering Board's Schenectady Office located at 1 Broadway Center, Suite 600, Schenectady, New York.

The meeting was called to order at 10:43 a.m.

In Attendance Were:

John D. Sabini, Chairman
Daniel D. Hogan, Member
Charles J. Diamond, Member
Robert Feuerstein, General Counsel
Kenneth Council, Director of Administration
Joseph Lynch, Director of Racing Operations
Patrick Wade, Audits & Investigations
Gail Pronti, Secretary to the Board

Also in Attendance Were:

Joseph Mahoney, NYSR&WB
William Sekellick, NYSR&WB
Kristen Buckley, NYSR&WB
Vivian Davis, NYSR&WB
John Googas, NYSR&WB
Thomas Spring, Capital District OTB
James Crane, Crane Consulting Group
Bernadette VanDenise, NYS Assembly
Nick Wilcock, NYS Assembly
John Matarazzo, Saratoga Gaming and Raceway
Donald Braim, Saratoga Gaming and Raceway
Jay Michaels, Saratoga Gaming and Raceway

OPEN COMMENT PERIOD:

Comments Began: 10:42 a.m.

Gail Pronti, Secretary to the Board, stated that e-mail comments from Jackson Leeds had been received concerning off-track betting. These comments are attached to the minutes.

Comments Ended: 10:43 a.m.

A. The Board approved the minutes of the Board meeting held on April 26, 2010.

B. ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED OR DEFERRED BY THE CHAIR

- 1. **BUFFALO RACEWAY IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Hollywood Park Racing Association, California from April 21 through July 18, 2010
 - 2. Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 2. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
 - 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.
- 3. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Tioga Downs, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 4. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1 through June 30, 2010.

Approval is also provided for this simulcast through December 31, 2010 conditioned upon:

- 1. Issuance of consent by the Standardbred Breeders & Owners Association of New Jersey, Inc. (SBOA) for the simulcasting for the relevant period; and
- 2. Filing of the SBOA consent with the Board prior to the start of the relevant period.

- 5. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 6. For entry into the minutes, on April 28, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Fort Erie Racetrack, Ontario, Canada from May 1 through October 26, 2010.
- 7. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Presque Isle Downs & Casino, Pennsylvania from May 7 through September 25, 2010.
- 8. **CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB MAY 2010 PROMOTIONS**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 15, 2010 application by the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to offer the specified promotions during the month of May 2010.
- 9. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB PROMOTIONS & CONTESTS UNDER SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT WITH VERNON DOWNS
 For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the May 2, 2010 application by the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to offer the specified Vernon Downs related promotions to its customers.

10. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – CLOSURE OF OLD NORTHERN PUB BRANCH – TUPPER LAKE, NY

For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the May 4, 2010 application by the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to amend its plan of operation to reflect the closure of operations at the EZ Bet operation known as the Old Northern Pub, 12 Cliff Avenue in Tupper Lake, N.Y. after the close of pari-mutuel business on Sunday, May 16, 2010.

11. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey through April 24, 2010.

- 12. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Tioga Downs, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010
 - 2. Vernon Downs, New York through November 27, 2010.
- 13. For entry into the minutes, on April 29, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana from May 1 through September 26, 2010.

14. CAPITAL DISTRICT, CATSKILL, NASSAU, SUFFOLK AND WESTERN REGIONAL OTBS – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from River Downs Jockey Club, Inc., Ohio through September 6, 2010.

- 15. For entry into the minutes, on April 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 16. For entry into the minutes, on April 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey via the auspices of Philadelphia Park through April 24, 2010.
- 17. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 18. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Prairie Meadows Racetrack and Casino, Inc., Iowa through from April 23 through August 8, 2010.

- 19. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware Racing Association, Delaware from May 1 through November 6, 2010.
- 20. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Fort Erie Racetrack, Ontario, Canada through October 26, 2010.

21. CATSKILL REGIONAL OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Catskill Off-Track Betting Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the following tracks during the year 2010:

- 1. Tioga Downs, New York
- 2. Vernon Downs, New York
- 3. Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc., New York.
- 22. For entry into the minutes, on April 30, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Catskill Off-Track Betting Corporation and Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs, Louisiana from May 1 through September 26, 2010.

23. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hollywood Park Racing Association, California from April 21 through July 18, 2010.

- 24. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 25. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey via the auspices of Philadelphia Park through April 24, 2010.

- 26. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from River Downs Jockey Club, Inc., Ohio through September 6, 2010.
- 27. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 28. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 29. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware Racing Association, Delaware from May 1 through November 6, 2010.
- 30. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Presque Isle Downs & Casino, Pennsylvania from May 7 through September 25, 2010
 - 2. Sterling Suffolk Racecourse, LLC, Massachusetts from May 15 through November 13, 2010.

31. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK – EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Grand River Agricultural & Exhibition Society (with four [4] secondary sites), Ontario, Canada from April 16 through December 4, 2010.

32. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes through December 4, 2010 to Hanover, Bentink & Brant Agricultural Society, Ontario, Canada.

- 33. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes through December 4, 2010 to Clinton Raceway, Inc., Ontario, Canada.
- 34. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Sol Mutuel Limited, Grenada through December 4, 2010.
- 35. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes through December 4, 2010 to Ocean Downs LLC (with one [1] secondary site), Maryland.
- 36. MONTICELLO RACEWAY IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway Mgmt, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Tioga Downs, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 37. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 38. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hollywood Park Racing Association, California from April 21 through July 18, 2010.
- 39. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from River Downs Jockey Club, Inc., Ohio through September 6, 2010.
- 40. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 41. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware Racing Association, Delaware from May 1 through November 6, 2010.

42. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1 through June 30, 2010.

Approval is also provided for this simulcast through December 31, 2010 conditioned upon:

- 1. Issuance of consent by the Standardbred Breeders & Owners Association of New Jersey, Inc. (SBOA) for the simulcasting for the relevant period; and
- 2. Filing of the SBOA consent with the Board prior to the start of the relevant period.
- 43. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Alberta Downs, Alberta, Canada during the year 2010.
- 44. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 45. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Sterling Suffolk Racecourse, LLC, Massachusetts from May 15 through November 13, 2010.
- 46. **MONTICELLO RACEWAY EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010** For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway Mgmt, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to Megatote, LLC, North Dakota, an additional secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Las Vegas Dissemination Company.
- 47. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway Mgmt, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to the following additional secondary site, www.raceuwin.com, associated with the previously approved simulcasts to ebet Technologies.

The Board also approved an amendment to reflect the following changes in operating names:

- 1. www.ebetonline.com is now www.wagerliveracing.com.
- 2. www.nationalsteeplechase.com is now www.jump2bet.com.

48. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway Mgmt, Inc. request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Hanover Raceway, Ontario, Canada through December 4, 2010.

49. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Nassau Regional

Off-Track Betting Corporation, and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:

- 1. Tioga Downs, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010
- 2. Vernon Downs, New York through November 27, 2010.

50. NEW YORK CITY OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 30, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Tioga Downs through November 6, 2010.

51. NYRA – 2010 HANDICAPPING CHALLENGES

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association's March 28, 2010 request, as supplemented on April 9 and 15, 2010, to conduct three handicapping contests at Belmont Park on June 26 and June 27, 2010, at the Saratoga Race Course on August 11 and 12, 2010, and at Aqueduct Racetrack on November 13 and 14, 2010.

52. NYRA – REQUEST TO CONDUCT \$300,000 PICK FOURS FOR 2010 BELMONT SPRING/SUMMER MEET

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 14, 2010 New York Racing Association's request to conduct \$300,000 guaranteed *late* Pick Four wagering pools on Saturdays only from May 1 through July 17, 2010. The Board also approved a \$1 million Pick 4 and a guaranteed \$1 million Pick 6 on Belmont Stakes Day as well as advanced wagering on Friday, June 4, 2010 on the Belmont Stakes and a daily double combining Friday's Brooklyn Handicap with Saturday's Belmont Stakes.

53. NYRA – EXTENSION OF APPRENTICE JOCKEY ALLOWANCE - SANTANA

For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an extension of the qualified apprentice weight allowance of apprenticeship of jockey Ricardo Santana, Jr. for an additional one hundred fiftynine (159) days through and including October 14, 2010.

54. NYRA – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:

- 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
- 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.
- 55. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from River Downs Jockey Club, Inc., Ohio through September 6, 2010.
- 56. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 57. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey via the auspices of Philadelphia Park through April 24, 2010
 - 2. Hollywood Park Racing Association, California from April 21 through July 18, 2010.
- 58. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 59. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Prairie Meadows Racetrack and Casino, Inc., Iowa through from April 23 through August 8, 2010.
- 60. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.

- 61. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Delaware Racing Association, Delaware through September 11, 2010
 - 2. Fort Erie Racetrack, Ontario, Canada through October 26, 2010.
- 62. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Presque Isle Downs & Casino, Pennsylvania from May 7 through September 25, 2010
 - 2. Sterling Suffolk Racecourse, LLC, Massachusetts from May 15 through November 13, 2010.
- 63. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana through September 26, 2010.
- 64. NYRA EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved The New York Racing Association's request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Hipodromo Nacional de Maronas (with four secondary sites), Uruguay through December 31, 2010.

- 65. **SARATOGA HARNESS IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey via the auspices of Philadelphia Park through April 24, 2010.
- 66. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 67. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Old Evangeline Downs, LLC, Louisiana through September 6, 2010.

- 68. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from River Downs Jockey Club, Inc., Ohio through September 6, 2010.
- 69. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
 - 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.
- 70. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 71. For entry into the minutes, on April 29, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana from May 1 through September 26, 2010.
- 72. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hollywood Park Racing Association, California through July 18, 2010.
- 73. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Presque Isle Downs & Casino, Pennsylvania from May 7 through September 25, 2010.
- 74. **SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB JUNE HANDICAPPING CHALLENGE**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's April 13, 2010 request to conduct a Handicapping Contest at the Racing Forum, 690 Motor Parkway, Hauppauge, N.Y. 11788.
- 75. **TIOGA DOWNS CHANGE IN SATURDAY, MAY 15, 2010 POST-TIME**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 15, 2010 request from Tioga Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, May 15, 2010, race program (Preakness Day) to 7:10 p.m.

- 76. **TIOGA DOWNS CHANGE IN SATURDAY, JUNE 5, 2010 POST-TIME**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 15, 2010 request from Tioga Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, June 5, 2010, race program (Belmont Stakes Day) to 7:15 p.m.
- 77. **TIOGA DOWNS REQUEST TO CHANGE POST-TIME ON MAY 1, 2010** For entry into the minutes, on April 28, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the request of Tioga Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, May 1, 2010 race program (Kentucky Derby Day) to 7:05 p.m.
- 78. TIOGA DOWNS IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010
 For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 79. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
 - 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.
- 80. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Alberta Downs, Alberta, Canada during the year 2010.
- 81. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 82. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hollywood Park Racing Association, California through July 18, 2010.
- 83. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware Racing Association, Delaware from May 1 through November 6, 2010.
- 84. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.

85. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1 through June 30, 2010.

Approval is also provided for this simulcast through December 31, 2010 conditioned upon:

- 1. Issuance of consent by the Standardbred Breeders & Owners Association of New Jersey, Inc. (SBOA) for the simulcasting for the relevant period; and
- 2. Filing of the SBOA consent with the Board prior to the start of the relevant period.
- 86. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana through September 26, 2010.
- 87. **TIOGA DOWNS EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the request of Tioga Downs to provide official race replays of races conducted at Tioga Downs to Youtube.com.
- 88. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Saratoga Raceway, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 89. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Harrah's Chester Casino & Racetrack, Pennsylvania
 - 2. Pompano Park (with twenty [20] secondary sites), Florida.
- 90. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Colonial Downs (with nine [9] secondary sites), Virginia from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 91. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Lien Games Racing, LLC (with six [6] secondary sites), North Dakota
 - 2. The Lodge at Belmont, New Hampshire.

- 92. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Freehold Raceway (with two [2] secondary sites), New Jersey from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 93. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Bet Pad LLC (with two [2] identified websites), Oregon
 - 2. Racing & Gaming Services (RGS), St. Kitts, West Indies.
- 94. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to The Red Mile, Kentucky from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 95. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Philadelphia Park (with eight [8] secondary sites), Pennsylvania
 - 2. Indiana Downs (with two [2] secondary sites), Indiana
 - 3. Hazel Park, Michigan.
- 96. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to Capital District Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York.
- 97. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. The Racing Network International, Inc. (with nine [9] secondary sites excluding GermanTote GmbH), Oregon
 - 2. The Racing Channel, (with two [2] specified sites), Oregon.
- 98. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York from May 1 through September 11, 2010.

- 99. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Sol Mutuel LTD, Grenada
 - 2. Global Wagering Solutions (with nine [9] secondary sites excluding German Tote GmbH), Pennsylvania.
- 100. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Penn National Gaming, Inc. (with eleven [11] secondary sites), Pennsylvania from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 101. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from May 1through September 11, 2010 to European Wagering Services (EWS), Isle of Man and its related Web Sites:

www.link2bet.com www.totebet.com.

- 102. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to:
 - 1. Buffalo Raceway, New York
 - 2. Vernon Downs, New York
 - 3. Catskill Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York
- 103. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to Track Net Media Group (with eight [8] guest entities and sixty two [62] secondary sites), Kentucky.
- 104. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Phumelela Gold International Limited, Isle of Man from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 105. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to eBet Technologies, Inc. (with six [6] secondary sites), Oregon from May 1 through September 11, 2010.

- 106. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Los Alamitos (with twenty seven [27] secondary sites), California from May 1 through September 11, 2010.
- 107. For entry into the minutes, on April 30, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from May 1 through September 11, 2010 to New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York.
- 108. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to ODS Technologies, L.P. d/b/a TVG Networks, California through September 11, 2010.
- 109. **VERNON DOWNS CHANGE IN SATURDAY, MAY 15, 2010 POST-TIME** For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 15, 2010 request from Vernon Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, May 15, 2010, race program (Preakness Day) to 7:10 p.m.
- 110. **VERNON DOWNS CHANGE IN SATURDAY, JUNE 5, 2010 POST-TIME**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 15, 2010 request from Vernon Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, June 5, 2010, race program (Belmont Stakes Day) to 7:15 p.m.
- 111. **VERNON DOWNS REQUEST TO CHANGE POST-TIME ON MAY 1, 2010** For entry into the minutes, on April 28, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the request of Vernon Downs to change the first post-time for the Saturday, May 1, 2010 race program (Kentucky Derby Day) to 7:10 p.m.
- 112. **VERNON DOWNS IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 113. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
 - 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.

- 114. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Alberta Downs, Alberta, Canada during the year 2010.
- 115. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Thistledown, Ohio from April 23 through November 6, 2010.
- 116. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hollywood Park Racing Association, California through July 18, 2010.
- 117. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware Racing Association, Delaware from May 1 through November 6, 2010.
- 118. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 119 For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1 through June 30, 2010.

Approval is also provided for this simulcast through December 31, 2010 conditioned upon:

- 1. Issuance of consent by the Standardbred Breeders & Owners Association of New Jersey, Inc. (SBOA) for the simulcasting for the relevant period; and
- 2. Filing of the SBOA consent with the Board prior to the start of the relevant period.
- 120. For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana through September 26, 2010.
- 121. **VERNON DOWNS EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010**For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Freehold Raceway (with two [2] secondary sites), New Jersey through November 27, 2010.

- 122. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Colonial Downs (with nine [9] secondary sites), Virginia through November 27, 2010.
- 123. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to The Red Mile, Kentucky through November 27, 2010.
- 124. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes through November 27, 2010 to:
 - 1. Lien Games Racing, LLC (with six [6] secondary sites), North Dakota
 - 2. The Lodge at Belmont, New Hampshire.
- 125. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes through November 27, 2010 to:
 - 1. The Racing Network International, Inc. (with nine [9] secondary sites excluding GermanTote GmbH), Oregon
 - 2. The Racing Channel, (with two [2] specified sites), Oregon.
- 126. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Penn National Gaming, Inc. (with eleven [11] secondary sites), Pennsylvania through November 27, 2010.
- 127. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes through November 27, 2010 to European Wagering Services (EWS), Isle of Man and its related Web Sites:

www.link2bet.com www.totebet.com

- 128. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Rosecroft, Maryland through November 27, 2010.
- 129. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Los Alamitos (with twenty seven [27] secondary sites), California through November 27, 2010.

130. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB/BATAVIA DOWNS – BATAVIA DOWNS CASINO FAN PACK WAGERING

For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the April 13, 2010 Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to conduct the specified "Fan Pack" promotion during 2010 for patrons attending the Batavia Downs Casino.

131. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB/BATAVIA DOWNS – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc., New York from April 16 through December 4, 2010.

132. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1 through June 30, 2010.

Approval is also provided for this simulcast through December 31, 2010 conditioned upon:

- 1. Issuance of consent by the Standardbred Breeders & Owners Association of New Jersey, Inc. (SBOA) for the simulcasting for the relevant period; and
- 2. Filing of the SBOA consent with the Board prior to the start of the relevant period.

133. YONKERS RACEWAY – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:

- 1. Hazel Park, Michigan from May 1 through September 18, 2010
- 2. Hollywood Park Racing Association, California from April 21 through July 18, 2010.
- 134. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Atlantic City Racing Association, New Jersey via the auspices of Philadelphia Park through April 24, 2010.
- 135. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Raceway Park, Ohio through October 31, 2010.

- 136. For entry into the minutes, on April 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
 - 1. Calder Race Course, Florida from April 25 through October 20, 2010
 - 2. Pimlico Race Course, Maryland through May 22, 2010.
- 137. For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from NJSEA (Meadowlands Harness Meet), New Jersey through December 31, 2010.
- 138. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Prairie Meadows Racetrack and Casino, Inc., Iowa through from April 23 through October 16, 2010.
- 139. For entry into the minutes, on April 23, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Churchill Downs (Spring Meet), Kentucky from April 24 through July 4, 2010.
- 140. For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Arlington Park, Illinois from April 29 through September 26, 2010.
- 141. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Louisiana Downs (Thoroughbred Meet), Louisiana through September 26, 2010.
- 142. For entry into the minutes, on May 6, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey from May 1, 2010 through June 30, 2010.
- 143. YONKERS RACEWAY EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 For entry into the minutes, on April 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Yonkers Raceway request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Lewiston Raceways, Inc. (with four [4] secondary sites), Maine for the year 2010.

C. ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED, DENIED OR DEFERRED BY THE BOARD

1. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO AMEND 2010 SIMULCAST LICENSE – OPERATION OF MOBILE BRANCH

For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's 2010 simulcast plan of operation authorizing the use of a mobile betting branch/unit as described in the 2009 application to the Board and previously approved for use by the Board on July 24, 2009.

2. NEW YORK CITY OTB – REQUEST FOR EXTENSION TO FILE OUARTERLY REPORTS

For entry into the minutes, on April 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation request for a 30-day extension to file the 1st quarter 2010 uniform quarterly report.

3. IN THE MATTER OF ANDRES GRULLON - SUMMARY SUSPENSION

For entry into the minutes, on May 4, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board summarily suspended the exercise rider license of Andres Grullon upon a finding that the public safety and welfare imperatively require this emergency action. This suspension remains in effect pending further disposition by the Board after a hearing.

4. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – MOBILE BETTING BRANCH FOR PREAKNESS AT CATSKILL MOUNTAIN LODGE - PALENVILLE

For entry into the minutes, on May 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's May 2, 2010 request to operate the Mobile Branch at Catskill Mountain Lodge in Plainville, New York on May 14 and May 15, 2010 pursuant to the mobile wagering plan of operation approved by the Board on July 24, 2009 and the operations summary provided for in Capital OTB's April 27, 2010 letter.

D. ITEMS TO BE APPROVED, DENIED OR DEFERRED BY THE BOARD

1. MONTICELLO RACEWAY – 2010 TRACK & SIMULCAST LICENSE APPLICATIONS

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board assigned to Monticello Raceway the race dates requested for the months of June and July 2010 only.

2. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB – NEW MEMBER TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS - DARROW

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Ronald B. Darrow as the new Board member representing Oswego County.

3. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – NEW CONCESSIONAIRE AT RACE PALACE TELETHEATER – CARLYLE AT THE PALACE

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's request to amend its plan of operation to reflect the approval of a new concessionaire for the Race Palace Teletheater located at 1600 Round Swamp Road in Plainview, N.Y. The new concessionaire is Carlyle at the Palace, Inc.

4. SARATOGA HARNESS – REQUEST TO AMEND ACCOUNT WAGERING PLAN OF OPERATION

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Saratoga Harness Racing, Inc. request to implement internet and telephone account wagering including race replays. The Board approved the revised plan of operation submitted conditioned on the following:

- All wagering and related activities are conducted pursuant to the submitted plan of operation;
- Approval is limited to telephone and internet wagering only; any expansion to include other electronic means requires prior additional Board approval;
- The computer servers processing the internet and telephone wagers must continue to be located at Saratoga Raceway;
- Saratoga Raceway may offer wagering via the internet only for those tracks which have provided written consent and have obtained the proper regulatory approvals;
- Saratoga Raceway may offer race replays via the internet only for those tracks which have provided written consent and have obtained the proper regulatory approvals;
- The approval does not include video streaming of live races;
- Saratoga Raceway shall utilize a unique TRA code that will discretely list handle and other wagering information in the TRA settlement file;
- Wagering shall not commence until Board staff receives satisfactory documentation of test results and provides notice of their acceptance.

5. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – NEW CONCESSIONAIRE AT CARLE PLACE BRANCH

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation's request to amend its plan of operation to reflect the approval of a new concessionaire for the Carle Place branch, located at 180 Glen Cove Road in Carle Place, N.Y. The new concessionaire is Piccolo Grazi Tutti, Inc.

6. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK – ADDITIONAL 2010 RACING OFFICIAL – HARRINGTON

Pursuant to Board Rule 4005.1, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racetrack request to employ Terry Harrington as the Stallman for the Finger Lakes Racing Association during 2010.

7. IN THE MATTER OF THE APPEAL BY JAMES CLOUSER FROM A PLACEMENT DECISION IN THE 9TH RACE AT MONTICELLO RACEWAY ON FEBRUARY 1, 2010

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of designated hearing officer Clemente J. Parente that the appeal by trainer James Clouser from the decision of the judges at Monticello Raceway not to disqualify the horse *Success Brings Joy* from the 9th race on February 1, 2010 be dismissed as a non-reviewable judgment call of the racing officials.

8. IN THE MATTER OF THE SCRATCH OF SHEENAJUNGLEQUEEN FROM THE 4TH RACE AT BUFFALO RACEWAY ON JUNE 3, 2009

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of designated hearing officer Clemente J. Parente that the appeal of trainer Sarah Osmelowski from the decision of the Presiding Judge at Buffalo Raceway to scratch the horse *Sheenajunglequeen* from the 4^h race on June 3, 2009 be denied and the ruling to scratch the horse be affirmed as a non-reviewable judgment call of the racing officials.

9. IN THE MATTER OF APPEAL BY DANIEL GOEHLE AND STEVEN GOEHLE FROM THE PLACEMENT DECISION IN THE 1ST RACE AT BATAVIA DOWNS ON AUGUST 8, 2009

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of designated hearing officer Clemente J. Parente that the appeal of owners Daniel and Steven Goehle from the decision of the Presiding Judge at Batavia Downs not to disqualify the horse *Joey Pants* and place that horse second behind *Nubes de Gloria* in the 1st race on August 8, 2009 be denied and the decision of the Presiding Judge be affirmed as a non-reviewable judgment call of the racing officials.

10. IN THE MATTER OF RICHARD B. JONES

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of designated hearing officer Clemente J. Parente to sustain the violation of Board Rules 4120.13 and 4120.4 and imposition of a sixty (60) day license suspension and \$1,000 fine in relation to the excessive pre-race TCO2 level finding for the horse MIKEY ROONEY, trained by Richard B. Jones, which competed at Yonkers Raceway on October 17, 2009.

11. IN THE MATTER OF PRE-RACE DETENTION OF FIVE HORSES TRAINED BY JOSEPH GUARINO PURSUANT TO RULE 4120.14 (b) (MULTIPLE TCO2s)

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board deferred determination of this matter.

E. ITEMS FOR BOARD INFORMATION/DISCUSSION

1. LICENSING/CURRENT LICENSE COUNT

The current racing licensing counts as of April 30, 2010 since January 1, 2010 are as follows: total receipts 4,981 and total licenses 3,687 for the year 2010.

2. **2010 LICENSED SUPPLIERS**

List of licensed suppliers – manufacturers' and distributors' licenses issued for the time period of April 1, 2010 through April 30, 2010.

3. GAMES OF CHANCE/BELL JAR TICKETS

List of bell jar tickets authorized/denied by the Charitable Gaming Unit between April 1, 2010 and April 30, 2010.

4. GAMES OF CHANCE/BINGO REGISTRATION NUMBERS

List of Games of Chance and Bingo Registration Numbers authorized/denied by the Charitable Gaming Unit from April 9, 2010 thru May 6, 2010.

5. INDIAN GAMING/LICENSING STATISTICS

Licensing statistics for April 1, 2010 through April 30, 2010. Also included were the certifications for Oneida, Mohawk, Seneca Allegany, Seneca Buffalo and Seneca Niagara.

F. FOLLOW-UP ON ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED

None.

The meeting adjourned at 11:13 a.m.